
 

 
Town of Orchid 

  Town Council Meeting 

December 7, 2011 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

Town Council Meeting 

 

December 7, 2011 

 

 

Town of Orchid Administrative Facility 

7707-3 US Highway 1, Vero Beach 

 

 

 

Agenda Item #1 – Call to Order and Roll Call 

 

 

 Mayor Dunlop called the meeting to order at 9:00 am 

 

 

 

 Present:     Councilmember Richard Dunlop 

Councilmember Bud Oatway 

Councilmember Paul Johnson 

       Councilmember Bill Troxell 

       Councilmember Harris Webber 

 

               

 Staff in Attendance:    Deb Branwell, Town Manager 

       Terri Wallace, Town Clerk 

        

 Absent:     Phil Redstone, Chief of Police (in class) 

 

    

 

Agenda Item #2 – Preliminary Matters 

 

 

A. Agenda Additions, Deletions, or Modifications 

 

Vice-Mayor Oatway inquired as to who called this Town Council Meeting, as he felt 

it was unnecessary.  Town Manager Branwell replied she had called the meeting as 

she could not reach a consensus with Council on an e-mailed polling Item and, 

subsequently, two other Items came about for Council’s attention.  Councilmember 

Webber dissented with Vice-Mayor Oatway and stated that Council should meet 

every month that is required by the Town Code and this meeting was not 

unnecessary.  Vice-Mayor Oatway asked that an Item for January, 2012 be added to 

the Agenda as to who is to call Town Council Meetings. 

 

 

B. Adoption of Consent Agenda 

 

1. Approval of Minutes of Town Council Meeting of November 2, 2011. 

 

 

Councilmember Troxell moved to approve the Minutes of the November 2, 2011, Town 

Council Meeting. 

Councilmember Johnson seconded the motion. 

All Councilmembers Agreed. 



 

 
Town of Orchid 

  Town Council Meeting 

December 7, 2011 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item #3 – Committee Reports 

 

 

 

 Treasure Coast Regional League of Cities 

 

Councilmember Webber stated he and Town Manager Branwell attended the meeting, 

hosted by Fellsmere, at Marsh Landing.  The Executive Director of the Brevard County 

Zoo came to discuss the new elephant compound to be located in Fellsmere. 

 

 

Economic Development Committee 

 

Councilmember Webber discussed the new proposed recycling plant for Indian River 

County. 

 

Councilmember Webber further discussed a meeting that he and Councilmember 

Johnson attended locally regarding the Florida Sunshine Laws. 

 

  

 Beach and Shores Committee – Coastal Structures Sub-Committee 

 

Councilmember Troxell stated for Council there was an article in the Press Journal 

summarizing this sub-committee’s first meeting.  Mr. Troxell also stated the scheduling 

of meetings for this sub-committee (they will meet the Monday before and the Monday 

after the Beach and Shores Committee, which meets the third Monday of the month).  At 

this first meeting, it was determined that four (4) members were insufficient and could 

result in ties on voting items; therefore, they appointed a fifth member to the 

committee.  The committee voted unanimously to recommend to the Beach and Shores 

Committee that they recommend to the Indian River County Commission to contract 

with the Florida Institute of Technology (FIT) and Dr. Gary Zarillo to construct a 

modeling program to prevent beach erosion, in Sector 3, with Prefabricated Erosion 

Prevention (PeP) Reefs. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item #4 – Town Council Matters 

 

 

A. Resolution 2011-05 Ban on Texting while Driving 

 

Mayor Dunlop asked Town Clerk Wallace to read the title of Resolution 2011-05. 

 

Councilmember Johnson moved to approve Resolution 2011-05. 

Councilmember Troxell seconded the motion. 

 

The Mayor then called for a roll call vote. 

 

Mayor Dunlop     Aye  

Vice-Mayor Oatway    Aye  

Councilmember Johnson   Aye  

Councilmember Troxell   Aye  

Councilmember Webber   Aye  

 

 

 

B. Addition of Streetlight on Westwind 

 

Mayor Dunlop stated for Council that resident, Mrs. Susan Bergeman, asked to have 

additional streetlights placed on Westwind Court.  The Mayor personally measured 

the distance between the streetlights on Westwind and also on Indies Drive and said 

they were equidistantly placed on both streets.  After discussing the topic, Council 

decided no further streetlights are required on Westwind Court. 

Further discussion ensued regarding the string of lights out on Orchid Point Way.  

Blais Electric discovered the panel feeding this string was burned out.  They have made 

a temporary fix and will coordinate with FP&L to change out the panel. 



 

 
Town of Orchid 

  Town Council Meeting 

December 7, 2011 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. Staff Christmas Gift Certificates 

 

Mayor Dunlop stated that historically staff opted for Target Gift Cards.  Vice-Mayor 

Oatway questioned why this was a Council matter.  The Mayor stated that Council has 

always discussed this Item.  Councilmember Johnson further stated that Council 

should be the one to discuss this Item.  The Mayor agreed with Mr. Johnson and further 

stated that this way there would be no questions of impropriety from the auditors, or 

the State, or by anybody else concerned.   

 

Councilmember Johnson moved to approve the Staff Gift Certificates in the amount of 

$150. 

Councilmember Troxell seconded the motion. 

All Councilmembers Agreed. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item #5 – Public Comment 

 

 

 There was no public comment. 

 

 

 

Mayor Dunlop stated for Council and the audience that the next Town Council meeting will be 

Wednesday, January 11, 2012, at the Town Administrative Facility.  He confirmed with Town 

Manager Branwell that there will be Items on the Agenda for Council’s consideration. 

 

Councilmember Johnson stated, regarding the sign-in sheet, that even though Vice-Mayor 

Oatway had asked for this Mr. Johnson felt it unnecessary for residents to sign-in.  Mayor 

Dunlop pointed out to Mr. Johnson that every meeting he attends, there is a sign-in sheet and 

everyone is required to sign it.  Mr. Oatway stated he did not ask for a sign-in sheet, but merely 

wanted to be alerted to the presence of the press.  Mr. Johnson asked if this was a new 

decision made for a sign-in sheet and the Mayor stated that it was decided at the last meeting.  

Council decided to eliminate the sign-in sheet. 

 

 

 

 

The meeting adjourned at 9:46 am. 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved at the        Town Council Meeting. 

 

 

       

Terri Wallace 

Town Clerk 


